SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 1, 2013
6:14 p.m

6: 14: 04 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Meyer called the Senate Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 6:14 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Pete Kelly, Co-Chair

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair

Senat or Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
Senator dick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny d son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Mary Ann Pease, Omer, Mach Consul ting, Anchorage;

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Janet  Kennedy, Pr esi dent, Board of Directors, Valley
Performng Arts, Mat-Su; Mark Lackey, Executive Director,
CCS Early Learning, WMat-Su; Delena Johnson, Myor, Cty of
Pal mer, Mat-Su; Dan Kennedy, Valley Performng Arts, Mat-
Su; Donna Johnson, CCS Early Learning, Mat-Su; Anthony
Waters, CCS Early Learning, Mat-Su; Kim Brown, CCS Early
Learning, Mat-Su; Larry Devilbiss, Mayor, Mat-Su Borough,
Mat - Su; Tim Veenstra, Airborne Technol ogy, WMat-Su; Tammy
Brehm CCS Early Learning, Mat - Su; Gary Forrester,
Executive Director, Valley Performng Arts, Mat-Su; Laura
Wheeler, CCS Early Learning, WMat-Su; Luke Fulp, Chief
Business O ficial, WMt-Su Borough School District, WMat-Su;
John Moosey, Borough Manager, Mat-Su Borough; Susan Hal e,
CCS Early Learning, Mat - Su; Mel anie Shaw, CCS Early
Learning, Mat-Su; Joshua MIler, Al aska Center for Energy
and Power, Fairbanks; Ron I|nouye, President, Tanana Yukon



Hi storical Society, Fairbanks; Shellie Severa, Conmunity of
Kal tag, Fairbanks; Carke MIlne, Self, Fairbanks; Luke
Hopki ns, Mayor, Fairbanks North Star Borough, Fairbanks;
Scott Bucher, Bucher @ ass, Fairbanks; Reed Morisky, Self,
Fai r banks; Terrence Cole, Self, Fairbanks; Dr. Lee O Hare,
Friends of UAF Mseum of the North, Fairbanks; Taber
Rehbaum Big Brothers Big Sisters of Al aska, Fairbanks;
Hal ey Mlintyre, Self, Fairbanks; Najnmus Saqib, Student,
University of Alaska Fairbanks, Fairbanks; Caleb Smth,
University of Alaska Fairbanks, Fairbanks; Ryan Cudo,
Student, University of Alaska Fairbanks, Fairbanks; Andy
Chanber| ai n, St udent , University of Alaska Fairbanks,
Fai rbanks; Anne Hanley, Self, Fairbanks; Chandler Kenp,
Self, Fairbanks; Larry Bennett, Engineer, Fairbanks; Lisa
Stowel |, Mechanical Engineering Gaduate Student, UAF,
Fai r banks; Joy  Hunti ngton, Tanana Chiefs Conference,
Fai r banks; Jacob Monagle, UAF, Fairbanks; Roger Burggraf,
Sel f, Fairbanks; Dom nique Pride, Forner Student Enployee,
ACEP, Fai r banks; Eric Johnson, G aduate Student, UA,
Fai rbanks; Bart LeBon, Board Menber, Arctic Wnter Ganes,
Fai r banks; Joni Scharfenberg, Enployee, Fairbanks Soil and
Wat er Conservation District, Fai r banks; Gary Lew s,
M dni ght Sun Council, Boy Scouts, Fairbanks; Richard G een,
Self, Fairbanks; Chris Mller, Vice President, Design
Al aska, Fairbanks; Kirk Brown, CCS Early Learning, Mat-Su;
Karl Lund, CCS Early Learning, Mat-Su; Elizabeth Ripley,
Executive Director, Mat-Su Health Foundati on, Mat - Su;
Therese Tomasoski, CCS, Mat-Su; Cindy Bettine, Business
Owner, Mat-Su; Janene Lovel ace, Self, WMt-Su; G ant Baker,
Self, Anchorage; Zachary Mannix, Self, Anchorage; Carnen
GQutierrez, Prisoner Reentry Task Force, Anchorage; Mary
Fi sher, Executive Director, Alaska Prevention Against
Litter, Anchorage; Chris Pallister, President, Qulf of
Al aska Keeper, Anchorage; Jon Zasapa, Executive Director,
Anchorage Nei ghborhood Health Center, Anchorage; Heather
Arnett, Statewide Admnistrator, Association of Al aska
Housing Authority, Anchor age; Orson  Smith, Engi neer,
Seward; Rob Jordan, Executive Director, Alaska Craftsman
Home Program (ACHP), Anchorage; Audrey Aanes, Executive
Director, Arctic Access, Anchorage; Joe Perkins, Menber,
Anchorage Library Foundation, Anchorage; Christine Klein,
Cali sta Sout hwest Al aska, Anchorage; Gail Schubert, Menber,
Al aska Retirenment Managenment (ARM Board, Anchorage; Bob
Moore, Vice Chairman, Big Brothers Big Sisters, Anchorage;
Sheri Burette, Chairman of the Board, Russian Othodox
Sacred Sites in Alaska, Eagle River; Ellen Kazary,
Devel opnent Director, Rural Al aska Community Action Plan

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



(Rural CAP), Anchorage; Florian Borowski, Menber, Al aska
Wor kforce Investnment Board, Anchorage; Chris Turletes,
Self, Anchorage; John Crews, Chairman, |ndustrial Advisory
Boar d, Al aska  Vocati onal Techni cal Cent er (AVTEC)
Anchorage; Kevin Waring, Vice President, Partners for
Progress, Anchorage; Jedidiah Smth, Menber, Anchorage
Public Transit Advisory Board, Anchorage; Judy Cam ner,
Chair, Chugach State Park Citizen Board, Anchorage; Jay
Dul any, Retired Public Enpl oyees of Al aska, Anchorage; Dale
Nel son, G vil Engineer, Anchorage; Wde Roach, Teacher,
Dinond High  School, Anchor age; Pet er Crinp, Sel f,
Anchorage; Brooks Chandler, President, Friends of the
Li brary, Anchorage; Bruce Parham Board Menber, Cook Inlet
Hi storical Society, Anchorage; Charlene Nollner, Self,
Gakona Village; Bruce Cain, Special Projects Mnager, Ahtna
Inc., dennallen; Joe Bovee, Land and Resource Manager
Ahtna Inc., dennallen; Ron Long, Assistant City Manager,
Seward; Louie Bencardino, Self, Seward; WIIlard Dunham
Sel f, Sewar d; Patrick Chandl er, | nt er nat i onal Coast al
Cl eanup Coordinator, State of Al aska, Honer; Randall West,
President, Kachemak Ski C ub, Honmer; Doug Malone, Board
Menber, Kachemak Ski C ub, Homer; Katie Koester, Conmunity
and Economi c Devel opnent Coordinator, City of Honer; Donna
St ephens, Executive Director, Hospi ce  of Anchor age,
Anchorage; Mary Matthias, Myor, N ghtnmute; Herman Mrgan
Ani ak, Md Yukon Kuskokwim Soil and Water Conservation
District, Aniak; Lester Lunceford, Mayor, Wittier; Layton
Lockett, Gty Mnager, Adak; Mke Gace, Self, Nenana;
M chell e Nesbet t, Board of Di rectors, Anchor age
Nei ghborhood Health Center, Anchorage; Jacque Longpre,
Mayor, Ani ak; Chuck Kaucic, Self, Palner; Charlene Arneson,
Chair, Wittier Watershed Council, Wittier; Venus Wods,
Al aska Native Justice Center, Anchorage; Julie Sandy, Board
Chair, Ketchikan Medical Center, Ketchikan; Stanley Haw ey,
Self, Native Village of Kivalina; Dwayne Hopson, Sr.
Mayor, Nuiqgsut; Angie Gorn, President, Norton Sound Health
Group, Nome; Joyce Brown-Rivers, Mayor, Muntain Village;

SUWWARY

SB 18 BUDGET: CAPI TAL
SB 18 was HEARD and HELD in committee for further
consi derati on.

#sb18

SENATE BILL NO. 18

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



"An Act nmmking appropriations, i ncluding capital
appropriations and ot her appropri ations; maki ng
appropriations to capitalize funds; and providing for
an effective date."

Vat - Su

6:14:41 PM

JANET  KENNEDY, PRESI DENT, BOARD OF DI RECTORS, VALLEY
PERFORM NG ARTS, MAT-SU (via teleconference), spoke in
support of funding for Valley Performng Arts for the
purchase and renovation of a new facility. She discussed an
i ncreasing need for additional space for Valley Performng
Arts' performances and shared that the organization had
over 14,000 patrons and over 500 volunteers the prior year.
She shared that Valley Performng Arts was experiencing an
increasing need for the community use of its facilities.
She pointed out that Valley Performng Arts had identified
a facility that could be purchased and converted into a
performng arts facility and comunity room She stated
that Valley Performng Arts worked with the Mat-Su Borough
School District and facilitated events for private and
honmeschool ed children. She stated that Valley Perform ng
Arts had the support of the Mat-Su Borough, as well as the
Pal mer and Wasilla city councils. She observed that Valley
Performng Arts was a sustainable, nonprofit agency that
woul d be contributing over $250,000 of its own funds to the
project. She concluded that the state would be providing
about half of the funds for the facility. She urged the
need to secure funding for the facility.

6: 18: 10 PM

MARK LACKEY, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, CCS EARLY LEARN NG MAT- SU
(via teleconference), testified in support of funding for
the CCS Early Learning facility project in Palner. He
related that CCS Early Learning needed to address issues
with its facilities. He stated that CCS Early Learning
wanted to conbine the two leased facilities in Palnmer into
one owned facility in order to save on operating costs. He
poi nted out that CCS Early Learning had identified property
in Palmer, gone through the pre-devel opment planning
process, and had fornulated a project that was expected to
save the organization between $50,000 and $100,000 per
year. He concluded that the project was inportant to CCS

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



Early Learning and the services that it would provide in
t he future.

6: 20: 01 PM

DELENA  JOHNSON, MAYOR, aTYy OF PALMER, MAT-SU (via
tel econference), expressed support of funding for the Cty
of Palnmer's Bogard waterline extension project and Well #2
i nprovenents, as well as a ladder truck for the fire
departnment. She related that there would be a 25 percent
cost savings in building the waterline during the Bogard
Road construction. She pointed out that there had been
several devastating fires in Palnmer recently and that the
city was trying to upgrade its equi pnent.

6:21: 50 PM

DAN  KENNEDY, VALLEY PERFORM NG  ARTS, MAT-SU (via
tel econference), spoke in support of funding for Valley
Performng Arts to purchase and renovate a new facility. He
shared that the Valley Performng Arts project would be an
econom c engine for the valley. He related that Valley
Performng Arts had found a location for the new facility
and was asking for one-tine funding request. He warned that
there was a degree of urgency and that if Valley Perform ng
Arts was unable to secure the funding for the I|ocation
within the next several nont hs, it could lose the
opportunity.

6: 23: 12 PM

DONNA JOHNSON, CCS EARLY LEARNI NG, MAT- SU (via
tel econference), urged funding for the CCS Early Learning
buil ding project in Palner and noted that her granddaughter
had gained a | ot of benefit fromthe Head Start Program

6: 23:49 PM

ANTHONY WATERS, CCS EARLY LEARNI NG, MAT- SU (via
tel econference), spoke in support of funding the CCS Early
Learning building project in Palmer and shared that his
three children had shown trenmendous inprovenent in the Head
Start Program

6: 24: 31 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



KIM BROAN, CCS EARLY LEARNI NG, MAT-SU (via tel econference),
urged funding for the CCS Early Learning building project
in Palmer. She related that CCS Early Learning and the Head
Start Program had a positive effect in the comunity. She
added that the Head Start Program offered a hel ping hand
for parents to make a positive difference in the |ives of
their children.

6: 25: 11 PM

LARRY DEVILBI SS, MAYOR, MAT- SU BOROUGH, MAT-SU (via
tel econference), spoke in support of the WMt-Su Borough's
funding requests for the rail extension, port protection,
and fisheries. In particular, he testified in support of
funding for the Knik Arm Bridge and Toll Authority (KABATA)
and the Bogard Road Extension East. He shared that the Mat-
Su Borough had a great need for road infrastructure and
recalled a Departnent of Transportation and Public
Facilities' statistic that three of the five highway safety
corridors were in the Mat-Su Borough. He stated that the
Sterling H ghway and the Seward H ghway had 13 fatalities
or major injures per 100,000 mles; However the Knik-Goose
Bay (K@) Road had 22.4 fatalities or mnmmjor injures per
100,000 mles, the Parks Hi ghway corridor had 17.3
fatalities or major injures per 100,000 mles, and the
Pal mer-Wasilla H ghway had 12.22 fatalities or nmjor
injures per 100,000 mles. He stated that the KABATA
project would help with the problem on K& and that the
Bogard Road extension would provide another corridor, both
east and west, in order to cross the borough.

Co- Chair Meyer expressed appreciation for the testinony and
noted that Senator Huggi ns and Senator Dunl eavy had brought
to his attention the need for nore roads in the valley.

6: 27: 46 PM

TIM VEENSTRA, Al RBORNE TECHNCLOGY, MAT- SU (via
tel econference), spoke in support of funding for the
Japanese tsunanmi debris cleanup efforts. He recalled that
the prior sumer , the Departnent of Envi r onnment al
Conservation had contracted with Airborne Technology to fly
an aerial costal survey of the Gulf of Alaska in order to
establish a baseline for assessing the expected future
debris from the Japanese tsunam of 2011. He stated that
the survey had revealed that the debris had already heavily
i npacted the Alaska coastline far ahead of the predicted

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



timeline. He stated that 8,000 high resolution inmges had
been processed for debris density and conposition, and
di scussed the damage that the tsunam would cause to
Al aska's oceans, beaches, and wldlife. He discussed the
different types of debris that the survey had identified
and related that the quantity of debris that was surveyed
was unprecedented. He offered that the current debris only
represented the "l eading edge" of what was com ng and urged
the need to address tsunam debris. He opined that the
tsunam debris would exceed the Exxon Valdez regarding its
| ong-1 asting i npact.

6:30:41 PM

TAMW BREHV| CCS EARLY LEARNI NG, MAT- SU (via
tel econference), testified in support of funding for the
CCS Early Learning building project in Palner. She stated
that parents' testinmony had shown that the Head Start
Program  hel ped children advance and prepare for
ki ndergarten. She concluded that CCS Early Learning's staff
al so assi sted people in how becone good parents.

6:31:17 PM

GARY FORRESTER, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, VALLEY PERFORM NG ARTS,
MAT-SU (via teleconference), spoke in support of funding
for Valley Performng Arts for the purchase and renovation
of a new facility. He related that the request for $4.7
mllion would cover about half of Valley Performng Arts'
project needs. He shared that the site, which had been
arrived at after an exhaustive study, was an abandoned
theatre. He related that the project had been vetted and
was fiscally sound. He pointed out that the project was
supported by the Mat-Su Borough, with support fromthe Cty
of Wasilla and the Gty of Palner. He pointed out that the
Cty of Wasilla had put funds in the project to show its
support and related that Valley Performng Arts had over
500 volunteers annually; there were also about 14,000
people that enjoyed Valley Performng Arts' services each
year. He stated that Valley Performng Arts generated about
$500, 000 i n revenue each year in the borough.

6: 33: 32 PM

LAURA VWHEELER, CCS EARLY LEARNI NG, MAT- SU (via
tel econference), testified in support of funding for the
CCS Early Learning building project in Palnmer. She related

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



that the funding would be used to build a new school for
the Palner Head Start Program conbined with CC Early
Learning's admnistration office; she opined that this
woul d save the agency approximtely $100,000. She stated
that she had two of her own children go through the Head
Start Program and related how the program had benefitted
her ki ds.

6: 34: 34 PM

LUKE FULP, CHI EF BUSI NESS OFFI Cl AL, MAT-SU BOROUGH SCHOOL
DI STRICT, MAT-SU (via teleconference), testified in support
of the Mat-Su Borough's capital requests. He related that
the Mat-Su Borough School District was the second | argest
school district in the state and that it believed in public
choice and innovation. He observed that Senator Dunleavy,
as well as the area's other legislators, had the borough's
capital requests and expressed appreciation for the work of
the comm ttee regardi ng educati on.

6: 35:42 PM

JOHN  MOGSEY, BOROUGH  MANAGER, MAT-SU BOROUGH (via
t el econf erence), expressed support of f undi ng for
additional fish passage projects and studies in the Mat-Su
Borough. He also testified in support of funding for the
Hat cher Pass ski area, funding that would allow notorized
use of the back of Hatcher Pass, as well as funding for the
South Denali Visitors Center and the South Gateway Tourism
Center. He shared that the borough was having a difficult
time getting fish to return to the Mitanuska, Susitna, and
Tal keetna Rivers. He pointed out that the lack of fish
returning had curtailed the growh and revenue to the
area's famlies. He concluded that the above projects were
important for snmall businesses and tourism in the WMat-Su
Val | ey.

6:37:39 PM

SUSAN HALE, CCS EARLY LEARNI NG, MAT- SU (via
tel econference), spoke in support of funding for the CCS
Early Learning building project in Pal ner.

6: 38: 06 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



MELANI E SHAW CCS EARLY LEARNI NG, MAT- SU (via
tel econference), testified in support of the CCS Early
Learning building project in Pal nmer.

FAI RBANKS

6: 38: 58 PM

JOSHUA M LLER ALASKA CENTER FOR ENERGY AND POVER,
FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), spoke in support of the
funding request by the University Al aska Board of Regents
for the Alaska Center for Energy and Power. He rel ated that
the Alaska Center for Energy and Powers was an applied
energy research program that focused on several statew de
projects that benefited the residents of Alaska by
addressing energy related issues. He stated that the Al aska
Center for Energy and Power had given him opportunities
that he would not have had otherwi se. He discussed the work
he had done as a geol ogy student through the center, which
included a trip to Iceland. He pointed out that the
experience he had gained through the Alaska Center for
Energy and Power had made him a nore nmarketable graduate
student and had resulted in an internship with BP Al aska.

6: 40: 57 PM

RON | NOUYE, PRESIDENT, TANANA YUKON HI STORI CAL SCCl ETY,
FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), wurged for funding the
conpletion of the State Library, Archives, and Mseum
Project (SLAM. He related that a new facility would save
the 140-year collection of Alaska's records and artifacts,
whi ch were being put in danger by the current facility. He
offered that the state nuseum staff deserved a nore
adequate facility in order to provide statew de service.

6:42: 02 PM

SHELLI E  SEVERA, COWUNI TY OF KALTAG FAl RBANKS (via
tel econference), spoke in support of funding for Kaltag's
seaf ood processing plant upgrade and renovation project.
She pointed out that the past sunmer, the unenploynent rate
in Kaltag had gone from 68 percent to O percent and added
that about 130 jobs had been created during the seasona
enpl oynent . She stated the plant upgrades could be
conpleted in the current year and would allow year-I|ong
enploynent for Kaltag residents. She shared that the
Kaltag's seafood processing plant had been in operation

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



since 2007 and had made significant progress every year in
production and enploynent; the renovation would increase
enpl oynent to 200 seasonal jobs and 25 permanent jobs in
the current year. She related that the tine was right for
funding and that the creation and retention of jobs was
very inportant for Kaltag.

CLARKE M LNE, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference),
testified in support of funding for the Engineering
Expansion Initiative at the University of Alaska Fairbanks
(UAF) and the University of Al aska Anchorage (UAA). He
poi nted out that both of the facilities were necessary for
nodern engi neering education. He shared his experience as
an engineering student at UAF and related that the current
labs and facility space in Fairbanks and Anchorage were
i nadequate for nodern work. He stated that the design for
the Fairbanks facilities had been thoroughly planned and
vetted and was ready for practical and efficient use. He
urged for the second half of the funding for UAF s and
UAA' s engi neeri ng expansi on.

6:46: 02 PM

LUKE  HOPKI NS, MAYOR, FAl RBANKS NORTH STAR BOROUGH,
FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), expressed support for $25
million in one-tinme energy relief funding on behalf of the
Al aska Conference of Myors. He also testified in support
of funding for the Arctic Wnter Ganes, the borough's
facility energy efficiency ©projects, artificial turf
fields, new restroons at Pioneer Park, the Engineering
Expansion Initiative at the University of Al aska Fairbanks,
and funding for the Fairbanks canpus power plant.

6: 48: 32 PM

SCOTT BUCHER, BUCHER GLASS, FAI RBANKS (via tel econference),
spoke in support of final funding for the Juneau State
Li brary, Archives, and Mseum (SLAM Project and the
Engi neering Expansion Initiative at the University of
Al aska Fairbanks (UAF) and the University of Al aska
Anchorage (UAA). He related that Bucher dass had been

awarded contracts for the Juneau SLAM and the UAF
engi neering project, which had allowed the business to
start a manufacturing facility in Fai r banks; t he

manufacturing facility would add an additional 15 to 20
jobs to Fairbanks in the next year. He shared that the
Juneau SLAM Project and the UAF engineering project would

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



provide work that would allow Bucher G ass to keep the 15
to 20 jobs going for an additional 6 nonths. He stated that
a strong engineering program would allow his business to
hire |l ocal engineers in the future.

6: 50: 15 PM

REED  MORI SKY, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference),
testified in support of full funding for conpleting the
Engi neering Expansion Initiative at the University of
Al aska Fairbanks (UAF) and The University of Al aska
Anchorage (UAA). He stated that the conpletion of the two
buil di ngs would greatly increase the nunber of engineering
gr aduat es.

6: 50:47 PM

TERRENCE COLE, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference), spoke
in support of funding for the Juneau State Library Archives
and Miuseum Project (SLAM, as well as funding for
conpleting the Engineering Expansion Initiative at the
University of Al aska Fairbanks (UAF) and the University of
Al aska Anchorage (UAA). He urged the state to invest in its
past and its future.

6:51:23 PM

DR LEE OHARE, FRIENDS OF UAF MJSEUM OF THE NORTH
FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), testified in support of
full funding for the Juneau State Library Archives and
Museum Project (SLAM. She related that the nuseum in
Juneau was a statew de nmuseum and urged for full funding of
the facility.

6:52:12 PM

TABER REHBAUM BIG BROTHERS BIG SISTERS OF ALASKA,
FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), spoke in support of the
one-tinme capital request for the Mentoring for Educationa
Success Initiative. She related that she had seen thousands
of children turn their Ilives around, i nprove their
scholastic performance, and becone productive citizens
through Big Brother Big Sisters and, di scussed the
effectiveness of the program She stated that the Mentoring
for Educational Success Initiative was a partnership wth
school districts across the state to provide nentoring for
children who were struggling academ cally; she offered that

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 11 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



these children were the nost at risk for acadenmic failure,
dropping out of school, and involvenent in the justice
system She shared that the initiative would use students'
scores to target which students needed help. She stated
that statistics showed that high school graduates earned 75
percent nore noney in their lifetime than non-graduates
did, which neant nore resources in Al aska. She shared the
hi gh cost of incarcerating juveniles in Alaska and stated
that the Mentoring for Educational Success Initiative was
an investnent in the state's future that would lead to a 90
percent graduation rate by the year 2020. She urged the
investnment in Al aska's children.

6:54: 20 PM

HALEY MCI NTYRE, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference),
testified in support of funding for the Alaska Center for
Energy and Power. She stated that the Al aska Center for
Energy and Power offered an environnent for students to
learn from experts, brought together creative mnds from
diverse fields, and helped students gain real world
experience that enployers wanted on the resunes of college
graduates. She acknowl edged the need to investnent in
infrastructure, but stated that it was equally inportant to
invest in the human capital that was necessary for the
state's future.

6: 55: 12 PM

NAJMUS SAQ B, STUDENT, UN VERSITY OF ALASKA FAI RBANKS
FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), spoke in support of full
funding for conpleting the Engi neering Expansion Initiative
at the University of Al aska Fairbanks (UAF) and the
University of Al aska Anchorage (UAA). He pointed out that
Al aska needed nore engineers and that the state needed to
better its universities in order to get nore engineers. He
poi nted out that Al askan enployers liked to hire engineers
from the state and that the engineering facilities needed
to be expanded in order to produce nore engi neers.

6: 56: 03 PM

CALEB SM TH, UNIVERSI TY OF ALASKA FAI RBANKS, FAI RBANKS (via
tel econference), testified in support of conpleting the
Engi neering Expansion Initiative at the University of
Al aska Fairbanks (UAF) and the University of Al aska
Anchor age (UAA).

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 12 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



6: 56: 48 PM

RYAN  CUDQ, STUDENT, UNI VERSI TY OF ALASKA FAI RBANKS,
FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), testified in support of
full funding for conpleting the Engineering Expansion
Initiative at the University of Al aska Fairbanks (UAF) and
the University of Al aska Anchorage (UAA). He stated that
engi neering was inportant to the econony and the nation,
and offered that Alaskan enployers wanted to hire Al askan
graduates. He concluded that funding the other half of the
university's engineering facilities would inprove the
quality of education of the students and would benefit the
st at e.

Co-Chair Meyer noted that there was a lot of interest in
the University of Al aska' s engineering coll ege.

6:57: 27 PM

ANDY CHAMBERLAI N, STUDENT, UNI VERSITY OF ALASKA FAI RBANKS,
FAI RBANKS (via t el econference), ur ged fundi ng for
conpleting the Engineering Expansion Initiative at the
University of Al aska Fairbanks (UAF) and the University of
Al aska Anchorage (UAA). He shared that he was due to
graduate in the fall from UAF and was planning to attend
graduate studies at UAA He related that his decision to
attend UAA for graduate studies was based, in part, by the
expectation of the construction of new engi neering
facilities.

6: 58: 14 PM

ANNE HANLEY, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), spoke in
support of funding for the Wnter Bear Project. She stated
that the Wnter Bear Project was intended to help change
the climate of fear and hopel essness that bred suicide,
especially anong Al askan Native nen in rural areas. The
project offered a play and community discussions follow ng
the play, as well as behavioral health support and
outreach. She related that the conmmunities had donated
housi ng, venues, and neals to the project. She concluded
that the Wnter Bear Project sought to change statistics
that were a blight on the state.

6:59: 23 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 13 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



CHANDLER  KEMP, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference),
testified in support of funding for the Al aska Center for
Energy and Power. He stated that the Al aska Center for
Energy and Power provided opportunities for students and
young people to get involved in projects that were val uable
to the state. He pointed out that he was attracted to cone
back to Alaska after graduating college, in large part,
because of the opportunities that the Al aska Center for
Energy and Power offered.

7:00: 35 PM

LARRY BENNETT, ENGA NEER, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference),
testified in support of the university regent's building
priorities: the conpletion of the two engi neering buildings
at UAA and UAF. He stated that there were a nunber of new
and replacenent jobs for engineers in the state. He pointed
out the dramatic increases in engineering enrollnents and
degrees over the several years prior. He also voiced
support of the request fromthe Mdnight Sun Council of the
Boy Scouts. He pointed out that the Boy Scouts request was
|l ess than half of the request for UAA and UAF engi neering,
but the funds would support continuing devel opnent of the
Boy Scout Canp at Lost Lake. He stated that the canp
continued to be the only developed canp in the Interior,
and served the Boy Scouts and many other groups. He pointed
out the canmp was the only accredited American Canping
Association canp in the Interior. He stated that the funds
woul d be leveraged by noney from private individuals and
f oundat i ons.

7:02: 14 PM

LI SA STONELL, MECHANI CAL ENG NEERI NG GRADUATE STUDENT, UAF,
FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), testified in support of
funding for the Alaska Center for Energy and Power (ACEP)

She stated that she was grateful for the ability to work in
the engineering field to gain experience and know edge t hat
makes it nore probable that she get a job and remain in
Al aska. She added that she was able to participate on
projects that had the potential to currently enhance
Al aska's future energy needs. She pointed out that she had
al ways been interested in alternative energy for the state.
She remarked that ACEP had increased her interest by
finding alternative energy, and inproving energy costs for
Al askans. She felt that the goal could be achieved by
| earni ng about Al aska's uni que chall enges, |and, econom cs,
and available resources. She remarked that geo therma

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 14 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



energy was site-specific, so a conplete assessnent of the
geo thermal area was necessary to determine the type of
resource that was available. She stated that her experience
with ACEP had helped with many job interviews; because many
enpl oyers were inpressed that she had experience on a drill
rig, logging wells, and long days in the field. She also
voi ced support of funding for the engineering buildings at
UAA and UAF.

7:04: 37 PM

JOY HUNTI NGTON, TANANA CHI EFS CONFERENCE, FAI RBANKS (via
tel econference), voiced support of funding the requests put
forth by the Tanana Chiefs Conference (TCC). She pointed
out that TCC worked hard to |everage federal dollars wth
state dollars. She shared that TCC had |everaged over $15
mllion non-state dollars with $2 mllion in state dollars.
She renmarked that TCC was continually creative in how funds
were utilized, in order to burden the State of Al aska. She
al so voiced support of the requests from the Council of
At habascan Tribal Governments in Fort Yukon, which was a
heal th care providing organization. She specifically urged
support of the $150,000 for provider housing for nedical
provi ders. She thanked the conmttee for taking the tinme to
hear all of the small comunities throughout the state.

7:07: 07 PM

JACOB MONAGLE, UAF, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference),
testified in support of the new UAA engineering building.
He stated that engineering conpanies were |ooking for
enpl oyees from Alaska. He stated that the conpanies were
seeking people who understood the unique challenges that
Al aska presented. He stated that the engineering conpanies
were eager to hire Alaskans who wanted to inprove the
state. He stressed that the engineering prograns at UA
provided quality and affordable education to Al askans; and
the construction of the new engineering buildings would
provide the education that the conpanies were seeking. He
stated that the current building was |acking size and
ventilation; which often hindered lab work that was
required. He stressed that the new engineering buildings
would greatly enhance the potential and prospects of
Al askan engi neers; and woul d greatly enhance t he
conpetitiveness and would be appealing to both instate and
out of state students.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 15 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



7:08:15 PM

ROGER BURGGRAF, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference),
testified in support of Departnment of Education and Early
Devel opnent funding and the UA engineering buildings in
Fai rbanks and Anchorage. He felt that education and
training was the key to the future success of the state. He
remarked that the funding for the proposed engineering
buil di ngs were beneficial to the entire state. He stressed
that it was necessary for the state to take a proactive
stance in developing its resources by training for the jobs
needed to build the econony. He renarked that education and
training were keys to the future of Al aska's producers. He
shared that China produces 400,000 engi neers per year, and
the United States produces 1,000 to 2,000 engineers per
year .

7:10:32 PM

DOM NI QUE PRI DE, FORVER STUDENT EMPLOYEE, ACEP, FAI RBANKS
(via teleconference), testified in support of the UA
funding for ACEP. She shared that her tine at ACEP gave her
the opportunity to apply what she had l|earned in the
classroom to real world projects. She shared that she had
worked on carbon sequestration; hydro kinetics; ground
source heat punps; and other various energy technol ogies.
She stressed the inportance of funding applied energy
research, in order to determ ne what works best for Al aska.
She remarked that many renewabl e energy technol ogies were
not currently economcally conpetitive; so if the research

does not get funding, those technologies will never becone
conpetitive. She shared that ACEP had nmany students that
would be working on energy issues well into the future

af ter graduation.

7:12: 02 PM

ERIC  JOHNSON, GRADUATE  STUDENT, UA, FAl RBANKS (via
tel econference), testified in support of funding for ACEP
He shared that ACEP provided the opportunity for students
to apply classroom know edge to a real world environnent.
He stated that he had personally worked on many field
projects. He announced that ACEP had given him the
opportunity to work on the Al aska Energy Wki, which was a
website that ACEP had created to spread the know edge of
energy projects that were occurring across Alaska. He
stated that ACEP provided the chance to work and nake

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 16 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



connections with the energy industry. He pointed out that
many former ACEP students had advanced to energy-related
jobs in Alaska. He remarked that ACEP involves students
with energy issues; and builds interest towards working in
energy-related fields.

7:13:52 PM

BART LEBON, BOARD MEMBER, ARCTIC WNTER GAMES, FAI RBANKS
(via teleconference), testified in support of $1 mllion
for the Arctic Wnter Ganes. He felt that the 2014 Arctic
Wnter Games would be an economic benefit to the State of
Al aska. He stated that the last time that Al aska hosted the
Arctic Wnter Ganmes was 2006. He explained that Al aska
woul d not have the opportunity to host the Arctic Wnter
Ganes for another ten years after the 2014 ganmes. He
explained that the Arctic Wnter Ganes would result in an
econom c inpact of over $10 mllion in direct visitor
spending and event operations. He shared that he was
anticipating approximately 2,000 coaches and participants.
He stated that eh Arctic Wnter Ganes supports the State's
m ssion to pronote econom c activity and provide for strong
comunity involvenent. He also urged support for the
engi neering buildings at UAF and UAA.

7:15:15 PM

JONI SCHARFENBERG, EMPLOYEE, FAIl RBANKS SO L AND WATER
CONSERVATI ON DI STRI CT, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference),
spoke in support of funding for the Fairbanks Soil and
Water Conservation District. She stated that the Fairbanks
Soil and Water Conservation District was part of the Al aska
Associ ation of Conservation Districts, and was locally |ead
by an elected board of supervisors. She stated that the
district strived to nmeet the natural resource technical and
educational request of private land owners and comunity
partners. She shared that work was done in waterways,
soils, agriculture, forestry, trails, mning reclamation,
af fordable energy, and natural resource education. She
stated that the conservation districts were mandated by
state statute to approve the Division of Agriculture State
Agriculture land sales conservation plans. She stressed
that the buyer could not be approved to work |and w thout
the district's approval. She remarked that the Fairbanks
district and other districts searched to obtain private and
federal dollars, but the funding request was necessary to

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 17 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



mat ch private and federal funds; and cover basic operations
i ke payroll and rent.

7:17:02 PM

GARY LEWS, MDN GHT SUN COUNCI L, BOY SCOUTS, FAI RBANKS
(via teleconference), testified in support of funding for
the M dnight Sun Council Boy Scout canp budget request. He
remarked that the canp was used by the Boy Scouts, Grl
Scouts, churches, and many state agencies. He pointed out
that the Mdnight Sun Council Boy Scouts did not frequently
request noney, and pointed out that the Boy Scouts in
Anchorage often received noney for their canps. He pointed
out that there were sone funds that were already raised,
but it was difficult to raise noney for nonprofit entities.
He explained that t he M dni ght Sun Counci | had
approximately 700 volunteers, and approximately 9,500 youth
in the Mdnight Sun Council Boy Scout program in the
I nterior.

7:18:56 PM

Rl CHARD  GREEN, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference),
testified in support of the Watherization, Cold dinate
Housi ng Research, and the Alaska Craftsman Honme prograns.
He renmarked that the Cold dinate Housing Research Center
was working to validate and nove forward with its current
weat heri zation program related to rebate and inconme based
program

7:21: 07 PM

CHRI'S M LLER, VICE PRESI DENT, DESI GN ALASKA, FAI RBANKS (vi a
tel econference), testified 1in support of funding the
engi neering program request for UAA and UAF. He shared that
he hired the students that testified for ACEP earlier in
the neeting. He pointed out that he loved to hire Al askan
engi neers, because they understood the difference between
"cold" and Fairbanks; and the difference between the
| argest tenperature spread in the world. He stressed that
Al aska was a unique place, and needed uni que engi neers that
cone fromunique facilities to train them

7:22: 07 PM

KI RK BROVW, CCs EARLY LEARNI NG, VAT- SU (via
tel econference), testified in support of the CCS Early

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 18 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



Learning program that would allow the building of a new
school in Palmer for its Head Start program He felt that
the CCS Early Learning Heat Start program nmade a positive
difference on the conmunity. He felt that CCS provided a
beginning journey for the future engineers and Al aska
wor kforce. He remarked that CCS gave students a well-
rounded beginning for school, and teaches and supports
parents for their children's futures. He also urged support
of the Boy Scout canp at Lost Lake budget request.

7:23: 11 PM

KARL LUND, CCS EARLY LEARNI NG, MAT-SU (via tel econference),
spoke in support of CCS Early Learning prograns. He shared
that the church that houses the Head Start program in his
community was expanding in order to acconmpdate the grow ng
and successful school. He urged support of a one-tine grant
fromthe State of Al aska, to construct a new site.

7:24: 52 PM

ELI ZABETH RI PLEY, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, MAT-SU  HEALTH
FOUNDATI ON, MAT-SU (via teleconference), testified in
support of She stated that the WMit-Su Health Foundation
invested revenues from the l|ocal hospital into grants to
make neasurable inprovenments to the health status of WMat-Su
residents. She stated that private and public funders
wanted to ensure that the dollars were used prudently, to
maxi m ze administrative efficiency, and the dollars produce
the desired health outcone of return. She remarked that the
Mat-Su Health Foundation was a partner in the pre-
devel opment program with Rasnussen, the trust, and Denali
Comm ssion to ensure that capital projects were well-
pl anned, right-sized, and sustai nabl e.

7:27:21 PM

THERESE TOVASCSKI CCs, MAT-SU (via teleconference),
encouraged funding for the new CCS Early Learning building
in Palmer. She felt that CCS inproved the devel opnent,
education, and health of young children. She stated that
the project would yield high returns in State dollars,
because the education of the young children could result in
future | eaders.

7:28: 04 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 19 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



CI NDY BETTI NE, BUSI NESS OWNER, MAT-SU (via tel econference),
testified in support of comunity revenue sharing. She
announced that she had recently served on the Mat-Su
Assenbly, at a tine when there was zero revenue sharing.
She remarked that it was inportant for the overall economc
climate for the Mat-Su to receive the full funding of the
revenue sharing. She stated that revenue sharing allowed
for small businesses to invest in their own business. She
stated that the borough could reduce and stabilize property
taxes through the revenue sharing. She urged the addition
of the $25 nillion, matching past levels of $85 mllion.
She thanked the commttee for allowng the public to
conplete their testinony.

7:29:46 PM

JANENE LOVELACE, SELF, MAT-SU (via teleconference), spoke
in support of funding for a new CCS Early Learning building
in Palmer. She remarked that she had observed hundreds of
famlies grow and strengthen due to the efforts of CCS and
Head Start. She remarked that the investnment in the new
building would be an investnent in children's futures by
bui l di ng a foundati on of education in Al aska.

ANCHORACGE

7:31: 00 PM

MARY ANN PEASE, OMER, MACH CONSULTI NG ANCHORAGE, spoke in
support of the Alaska Children Services request for the
Statewi de Behavioral Health D stance Training and Delivery
System She shared that the program would be self-
sustaining, and wuld reduce the <cost of long-term
children's nental health care. She pointed out that Al aska
Chil dren Services had been the state's preniere provider of
mental health services for disabled and behaviorally
inmpaired children. She stated that the services included
community based and full institutionalization in the nost
severe cases. She shared that the children in Al aska
Children Services, ages 6 to 16, cane from all area of the
state. The children were <challenged by a range of
conditions including genetic defects, fetal al cohol
syndrome, suicide risk, substance abuse, and an array of
psychol ogi cal disorders. She stressed that there needed to
be an optimzation of expertise already available in the
state for the betternent of the children. She pointed out
that one of the critical conponents of the request was the

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 20 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



training nodule that would recognize potentially violent
mentally ill chil dren; and focus on the training,
remedi ation, and intervention before the violence occurs or
escal ates. She explained that Alaska Children Services
woul d provide all maintenance and operational costs of the
facility; and also contribute the land for the expansion.

7: 33: 38 PM

GRANT BAKER, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of the engineering building at UAA and
UAF. He also voiced support for the Alaska Engineering
Academies at the mddle and high schools across the state.
He shared that he was an engineering professor for 24
years, and he helped to «create and build the UAA
engi neering prograns. He stressed that there was a severe
shortage of building space, and students were |eaving
Al aska to participate in engineering prograns el sewhere. He
shared that for 8 years he had worked with the mddle and
hi gh schools to develop engineering academ es throughout
Al aska. He stressed that engineering academ es were cost
effective pr ogr ams t hat attract students to take
engi neering and technol ogy courses, and would prepare them
for coll ege.

7:34:47 PM

ZACHARY  MANNI X, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
voi ced support of the Alaska Engineering Acadeny's
initiative of $4.9 nmllion to develop and enhance
engi neering and science, t echnol ogy, engi neeri ng, and
mat hemati cs (STEM academ es throughout Al aska. He stressed
that Alaska was currently facing a nassive shortage of
qualified science, technology, engineering, and nathematics
professionals. He stated that Al aska would face a STEM
wor kf orce shortage of approxinmately 8100 people by 2018. He
stated that the Al aska Process Industry Careers Consortium
(APICC), worked with the University of Alaska system and
reached an agreenent to collaborate with Departnent of
Educati on and Early Devel opnent and the Departnent of Labor
and Workforce Devel opnent to devel op and support access to
engi neering academes for all of Al aska's public secondary
education students. He remarked that the academ es offered
students career pathways in STEM related industries. The
academ es were backed by a thorough inplenentation plan; an
i ndustry and educati on backed advi sory board; and were held

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 21 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



accountable by national standard tests. He shared that
State

7:36:45 PM

CARVEN GUTI ERREZ, PRI SONER REENTRY TASK FORCE, ANCHORACE
(via teleconference), testified in support of the Partners
for Progress Joint Recidivism Reduction Plan funding. She
shared that Al askans had the opportunity to spend limted
State resources in a nore proactive fashion, when the rate
of crimnal recidivism was reduced. She stated that
Al aska's prison population was growing at 3 percent per
year. She announced that if that growh was not a halted,
the prisons would be at full capacity. She felt that the
Partners for Progress Joint Recidivism Reduction Plan for
FY 14 had denonstrated radical reduction in recidivism She
shared that the project would fund transitional rental
housing and related reentry assistance to probationers who
were referred by Departnent of Corrections (DOC). She
announced that Anchorage received the vast majority of
newly released prisoners. She shared that the nunber of
convicted felons released to the Anchorage area was over
1700 individuals in the year 2009. She stated that the
recidivismrate for those individuals was high, and it was
estimated that 25 percent of those individuals had no
resources. She explained that those individuals were
supervi sed by probation officers in Anchorage that had case
| oads of 100 probationers per each probation officer. She
explained that the project would allow the Partners for
Progress would work with the Al aska Native Justice Resource
Center and N ne Star Educational and Enpl oynent Services to
provide |imted housing assistance and case nmanagenent
services that provide stable housing and enploynent
training skills. She felt that the project would give
i ndi vidual s a better chance of succeedi ng upon release into
the comunity. She remarked that the Alaska Native Justice
Center no longer received federal funding, so they would
have no funding available to provide services in FY 14.

7:40:25 PM

MARY FI SHER, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, ALASKA PREVENTI ON AGAI NST
LI TTER, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified in
support of $5 million for cleanup of Al aska's coastline and
beaches inpacted by debris from the Japan Tsunam . She
shared that studies by the National Cceanic and Atnospheric
Adm ni stration (NOAA) and the Departnent of Environnental

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 22 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



Conservation (DEC) confirnmed that Al aska was significantly
nore inpacted by the debris than other west coast states

and Hawaii. She announced that the cost of cleaning the
remote and hi gh energy beaches was nmuch nore expensive than
it would be in the other west coast states and Hawaii. She
stated that the Alaska Prevention Against Litter had
provided funding and assisted in Ilitter cleanup for

Al aska's comunities since the year 1982. She announced
that the Al aska Prevention Against Litter had never faced a
litter and debris pollution issue of this nmagnitude, so the
State needed to act quickly to mtigate the negative
i mpacts of fish and wildlife.

Co- Chair Meyer handed the gavel to Vice-Chair Faircl ough

7:42: 03 PM

CHRI'S PALLI STER, PRESI DENT, GULF OF ALASKA KEEPER,
ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), spoke in support of $5
mllion for <cleanup of Alaska's coastline and beaches
i npacted by debris fromthe Japan Tsunam . He renarked that
the tsunam greatly exacerbated preexisting marine debris
problem in the @lf of Alaska, and nore than double the
anount of plastic debris on the beaches. He stated that
Washi ngton Sea Grant predicted that between 30 mllion and
375 mllion pounds of tsunam debris would wash up onto
Al aska's shore. He explained that nobst of the debris was
plastic items and druns of chemcals. He stated that the
tsunam debris was | odged on state-owned tide |ands, so the
fish and wildlife resources were inpacted. He remarked that
the tsunam debris was nuch worse than normal plastic
marine debris; because nuch of the debris was conprised of
Styrofoam and urethane foam insulation from crushed
buil dings. He explained that the foam deteriorates, gets
broken down into small pieces, and is eventually eaten by
fish and wildlife. He shared that plastic bottles full of
vari ous substances |ike condi nents and cl eaning agents were
flooding the coast. He explained that nobst of the bottles
quickly deteriorate, because of the battering water on the
shores, which results in aninmals ingesting the substances
and get passed up the food chain.

7:44:36 PM

JON ZASAPA, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, ANCHORAGE  NEI GHBORHOOD
HEALTH CENTER, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), ur ged
support of $90,000 for a shuttle to the Anchorage

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 23 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



Nei ghborhood Health Center, which would connect the new
health center on C Street with the downtown shuttle center
in Anchorage. He stated that the shuttle was a partnership
between the nmunicipality of Anchorage and the Health
Center. He explained that the shuttle provided access to
sone of nost vulnerable patients Ilike the honeless,
elderly, and children. He shared that the shuttle was
growi ng by approximately 10 percent per nonth. He renarked
that the shuttle served alnobst 33 patients per day. He
shared that the total cost of the shuttle service from
Sept enber 2013 to Decenber 2014 was $226,000. He felt that
the additional funding could support the shuttle's
continued operation. He pointed out that the request was an
interim step while work with the municipality continued to
identify funding for a permanent route to the Health
Center.

7:47:16 PM

HEATHER ARNETT, STATEW DE ADM NI STRATOR, ASSCOCI ATION OF
ALASKA HOUSI NG AUTHORI TY, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of an increase of funding to the
Weat heri zation and Energy Rebate Prograns. She felt that
those prograns were extrenely effective in reducing hone
energy costs for Alaskans. She shared that famlies who
participated in the progranms experienced a 30 to 40 percent
reduction in energy costs. She alleged that if the program
was funded at $31.5 nillion, funding for the program would
be cut in half in the next grant cycle. She urged support
of full operational funding of the prograns in the anount
of $101.5 mllion.

7:49: 46 PM

ORSON  SM TH, ENG NEER, SEWARD (via teleconference),
testified in support of funding for Al aska Vocational
Technical Center (AVIEC), and the engineering building
funding requests at UAA and UAF. He shared that the new

bui | di ngs woul d provi de expanded | aboratories and
cl assroons based on teambased |l earning. He stated that the
current building had no classroons, because all of the

cl assroons needed to be converted to labs in order to be
consistent with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA)
requirenents. He felt that UA' s engineering accreditation
woul d be threatened without the prom se of a new buil ding.
He also specifically spoke to the funding request for the
ship sinmulator at AVIEC. He explained that the ship

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 24 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



simulator AVIEC was a world class and unique facility for
training Al aska mariners in Al aska conditions.

Vi ce- Chai r Faircl ough handed the gavel to Co-Chair Meyer.

7:51:44 PM

ROB  JORDAN, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, ALASKA CRAFTSVMAN HOVE
PROGRAM ( ACHP), ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), reiterated
M. Geen's testinony related to funding for the Statew de
Energy Efficiency Education program He remarked that
energy costs were prohibitive in many parts of the state

and many hones were not built with efficiency or safety as
a priority. He explained that the program woul d address the
need for education and awareness; provide tools for
Al askans that were struggling with high energy costs; and
woul d deliver solutions to communities throughout the state
based on the need in the comunity. He felt that energy
efficiency education was an imediate solution to a
statewi de problem The program would provide 200 howto
wor kshops for honeowners; 50 workshops for commerci al
buil ding owners and commercial building users; training
sem nars on valuing energy efficiency inprovenents; and a
conprehensi ve statew de awareness and outreach canpaign. He
enphasi zed that energy efficiency education would reduce
heati ng costs; reduce health risks in hones; and increased
val ue of Al aska's housi ng stock.

7:53:22 PM

AUDREY AANES, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, ARCTIC ACCESS, ANCHORAGE
(via teleconference), urged support of funding the request
for adaptive equipnent for elders and people wth
disabilities in Northwest Alaska. She stressed that the
need for assisted devices was substantial in the Arctic
Access service area of Nome and Northwest Arctic regions
including Point Hope. She shared that the 2000 census
indicated a total population of over 3500 who experience a
disability in the Northwest Alaska service region. She
pointed out that, in a recent survey, the conmunities
indicated their need for grab bars; showering and toileting
equi pnent; and many other adaptive devices for those that
do not have other resources. She shared that Arctic Access
received regular requests for step stools, walkers, canes,
reading devices, hearing devices, and durable nedical
equi pnent. She stressed that the itenms were necessary to

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 25 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



basic health and safety; and were critical during hospita
to honme transitions.

7:56:16 PM

JOE PERKI NS, MEMBER, ANCHORAGE LI BRARY FOUNDATI ON
ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified in support of
funding for $8 nillion for the funds to renovate the
entrance to Loussac Library. He explained that the funding
woul d cover phase 1 of the Loussac Library renovation. He
felt that the $8 million would allow for future renovations
to occur in a non-wasteful manner. He remarked that the
funding was an investnment that would pay dividends into the
future. He remarked that the request would solve two public
safety issues: the current entrance to the library was
deteriorating; and the exterior book drop would be repl aced
with a book drop that allows books to go directly into the
library, in order to avoid the possibility of an enployee
injuring thensel ves on ice outdoors.

7:58: 57 PM

CHRI STINE KLEIN, CALISTA SOUTHWEST ALASKA, ANCHORACE (via
tel econference), testified in support of funding $8 nmllion
for Martional Barge Stocking facility and access road. This
project would nobilize quality rocks; and would assist with
public projects funded by state and federal governnents.
She also voiced support of funding the New Vista Co-op
project for a feasibility assessnent to continue the Denali
Conmi ssion's work on distributing Alaska's power. She
pointed out that there would be an exam nation of the
inter-tie feasibility between villages. She also urged
support funding for the Yukon Kuskoqui m Freight and Energy
Corridor. She felt that the project would help reduce
transportation costs; provide alternative energy access;
and enable a road in the road-|ess region.

8:01: 28 PM

GAl L SCHUBERT, MEMBER, ALASKA RETI REMENT MANAGEMENT (ARM
BOARD, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), urged support of a
special appropriation of $150 mllion for the unfunded
l[iability, and $500 mllion for the retirenment unfunded
l[iability of the Public Enployees Retirenment System (PERS)
and Teachers Retirenent System (TRS). She also voiced
support for a special annual appropriation of $500 mllion
for FY 15, FY 16, and FY 17 toward retirenent of the

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 26 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



unfunded liabilities. She explained that the PERS and TRS
liabilities grew from approximately $6.9 million in 2005 to
approximately $11.9 mllion by June 2012. She stated that
it was anticipated that the States' annual appropriation to
pay down the conbined unfunded liabilities of the two
retirement systems would soon exceed $1 billion. She
stressed that it was not sustainable, and would create a
financial hardship for the State and |ocal governnent
enpl oyers. She announced that the ARM Board's actuaries had
estimated that contributing and additional $500 nillion
each year, for four years, would result in state and |oca

government enployers would realize a total savings of $2.5
billion. The estinmated savings would be approximately $1.5
billion for PERS and approximately $1.133 billion for TRS

She explained that the savings was possible because ful

funding of the retirenment systens would be reached al nost
two years earlier than projected, because of the special

annual appropriation. She felt that |local governnent
enpl oyers would realize $1 billion in reduced enployer
contributions; and the State would realize $1.5 billion in

reduced State assi stance.

8:04: 53 PM

BOB MOORE, VI CE CHAI RVAN, BIG BROTHERS BIG Sl STERS
ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified in support of
funding for the Mentoring for Educat i onal Success
Initiative. He shared that there were thousands of cases at
Big Brothers Big Sisters of Al aska of youth that inproved
school performance and becanme productive citizens. He
stressed that the initiative was a partnership wth schoo
districts to provide nentoring for students who were
struggling academ cally based on their scores of the third
grade standards based assessnent test. He stressed that the
children in the program were the nobst at risk of academc
failure. He explained that census figures reflected that
hi gh school graduates received 75 percent nore in their
lifetime than non-graduates; translating into nore economc
resources for the state. He remarked that the cost to
incarcerate a juvenile in Al aska was $140,000 a year; and
furthered that Big Brothers and Big Sisters could provide
and at-risk child wth support that could reduce the
child' s delinquency and ensure that the child graduates on
time for only $2,000 a year.

8:07: 07 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 27 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



SHERI BURETTE, CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD, RUSSI AN ORTHODOX
SACRED SITES IN ALASKA, EAGE RIVER (via tel econference),
urged support of funding for mintaining the historic
Russi an Orthodox churches. She stressed that the churches
were an inportant part of Alaska's history. She stated that
many of the churches were in dire need of historic
mai nt enance and renovation. She shared that Al aska had a
vi brant Russian Othodox history, and Al askans needed to
experience the Russian Othodox churches in their original,
historic architecture. Maintenance of the churches was an
inportant part of Alaska's m ssion and constitution.

8:09:24 PM

ELLEN KAZARY, DEVELOPMENT DI RECTOR, RURAL ALASKA COVMUNI TY
ACTION PLAN (RURAL CAP), ANCHORACE (via teleconference),
spoke in support of the funding for the Rural CAP request
for the Energy Wse program She appreciated Senator
Oson's letter of support for the request. She explained
that Energy Wse hired and trained |ocal workers to provide
energy efficiency upgrades in hones and energy efficiency
education in rural Alaska. She shared that independent
eval uators had determned that the program worked, and had
a three year return on investnent due to sustained
reduction of energy use including reduced kilowatt hours
resulting in lower energy bills for residents. She stated
that the program had been successfully inplemented into 22
villages with over 240 |ocal workers serving over 2000
househol ds.

8:10: 52 PM

FLORI AN BOROWEKI , MEMBER, ALASKA WORKFORCE | NVESTMENT
BOARD, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), voiced support of
AVTEC capital budget requests. He specifically urged
support of funding for the Heavy Equi prment D esel Shop; the
Maritinme Si mul at or |l ce Navi gat i on; and deferred
mai nt enance. He stated that he was part of an organization
that enployed over 120 heavy duty nmechanics he was
especially directing his support toward AVIEC s need for a
heavy equi prment shop. He remarked that it was continually
difficult to find the proper nunber of qualified Al askans
to fill the need for qualified mechanics; and he felt that
funding these itens in AVIEC s budget would ease that
pressure.

8:12: 01 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 28 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



CHRI'S TURLETES, SELF, ANCHORACGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of funding for the engineering
facilities at UAA and UAF. He shared that he had a daughter
who had recently graduated from the engineering program at
UAA, and currently worked at an Anchorage engineering firm
He stated that the funding for the facilities was already
at half of what was needed to conplete the project. He
stressed that Alaska was facing a shortage of qualified
engi neers. He stated that Al aska enployers preferred to
hire UA graduates, because of their understanding of cold
regions and their likelihood of remaining in Al aska. He
recognized that it was a substantial investnent, but
investing in engineers for Alaska was vital to Alaska's
future.

8:14: 49 PM

JOHN CREWS5, CHAIRVAN, | NDUSTRI AL ADVI SORY BOARD, ALASKA
VOCATI ONAL TECHNI CAL CENTER ( AVTEQ), ANCHORAGE (via
tel econference), testified in support of funding for AVTEC
He stressed that the training prograns at AVIEC were the
foundati onal building blocks of the state. He specifically
highlighted the $6 nmllion for phase 1 of the Heavy
Equi prent Diesel Pipe Wlding Facility Relocation. He
shared that the current facility had nunerous structural
and safety issues. He also voiced support of $968,000 for
deferred maintenance. He stated that the maintenance
supported by the funding included sone life safety
i nprovenents to the Student Center, which was used by both
the residents of Seward and the students of AVIEC He
additionally spoke in support of funding the energy
efficiency upgrades, and inprovenents to the building trade
shop environnment. He stressed the inportance of a training
shop that mrrored shops of private enployers. He supported
funding for installing digital controls to increase heating
system efficiency. He also voiced support of an engineering
study of the fire alarm system on canpus, to determ ne
needed upgrades and costs to the out-of-date system He
voi ce support of the $375,000 for phase 1 of the Ice
Navi gation Upgrade of the Marine Sinulator. He explained
that the sinulator was very advanced; and was utilized by
both state and private pilots.

8:18: 25 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 29 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



KEVIN WARING VICE PRESIDENT, PARTNERS FOR PROGRESS,
ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified in support of
$600, 000 for Partners for Progress's partnership to reduce
crimnal recidivism He specifically echoed Ms. Gutierrez's
comments. He shared that, for three years, Partners for
Progress, the Al aska Native Justice Center, and N ne Star
Enpl oyment Services had collaborated with (DOC) to provide
tenporary housing, case nmanagenent, and enpl oynent services
to a |limted nunber of newy released offenders. He
remarked that 80 percent of participating offenders had
succeeding in the program by staying out of prison;
conpared to 34 percent of non-participants. He shared that
this recidivism reduction program cost approximtely $2, 000
per participant. Each participant who does not reoffend,
i medi ately saves the state $85,000, which was the cost of
si x nmonths incarceration

8:20: 29 PM

JEDIDIAH SM TH, MEMBER, ANCHORAGE PUBLI C TRANSI T ADVI SORY
BOARD, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified in support
of the Alaska Mobility Coalition's request for comunity
transit system funding. He felt that the funding was
fundanmental to addressing the transportation needs of urban
and rural comunities throughout the state. He stated that
a $3 mllion investnment in public and comunity
transportation would |l everage up to $15 million in federal

state, and local funding. He remarked that public and
community transportation provided reliable access to jobs

and services; inproves nobility; reduces congestion and
energy consunption; and inproves safety in the comunity.
He shared that People Mver delivered over 4 mllion rides

to Anchorage residents and visitors in 2012. He explained
that state funding had previously helped People Mover
i nplenent a new fare box system that made fare correction
and tracking ridership nore accurate.

Co- Chair Meyer handed the gavel to Vice-Chair Fairclough

8:22:39 PM

JUDY CAM NER, CHAIR, CHUGACH STATE PARK C TIZEN BQARD
ANCHORAGE (via tel econference), testified in support of the
Chugach State Park Access and Trail Rehabilitation funding
initiative. She shared that the Chugach State Park was a
great resource for Alaskans and visitors. She explained
that the project was a conpilation of access inprovenents;

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 30 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



interpretative finds; and trail rehabilitation needs. She
stated that the request was created using public input that
was received during the devel opnent of the managenent plan

trail plan, and access plan. She felt that the inprovenents
would pronote public health, safety, and enjoynent; it
woul d reduce trail erosion and maintenance costs; it would
provi de for enhanced public education; and it would help
stem conflicts private property owners near the park access
points. She shared that an estimated 1.3 mllion people
visited the park in 2012.

8:24: 53 PM

JAY DULANY, RETIRED PUBLI C EMPLOYEES OF ALASKA, ANCHORAGE
(via teleconference), mrrored M. Schubert's testinony
related to the PERS and TRS wunfunded Iliability. He
understood that the <crisis was not inmmnent, but if
i nvestment was made nonentarily, it would save billions of
future dollars.

8:25:47 PM

DALE NEL SON, ClVIL ENG NEER, ANCHORAGE (via
t el econf erence), testified in support of Al aska
Prof essional Design Council project requests. He shared

t hat hi s or gani zati on repr esent ed 5, 000 regi stered
prof essionals. He specifically urged support of funding for
UAF and UAA engineering buildings funding. He stressed the
i mportance of an engineering building in Al aska, in order
to create strong Al askan workforce for future construction
proj ects.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough rem nded the testifiers to keep their
remarks to two m nutes.

8:28:42 PM

WADE ROACH, TEACHER, DI MOND HI GH SCHOOL, ANCHORAGE (via
tel econference), testified in support of the Al aska Process
| ndustry Careers Consortium Al aska Engineering Initiative.
He announced that Dinond H gh School was one of two
engi neering academes that were initiated in 2008, as a
response to a <call to action from Sienmens Building
Technol ogies and other engineering firns in Al aska. He
disclosed that he had been involved in designing the
curriculum and acadeny. He stated that he had taught high
school in Alaska for fifteen years, and was at the front

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 31 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



line of STEM education. He shared that he was a science
teacher, robotics coach, and a departnent |eader in career
and technical education. He felt that Al aska Engineering
Academies wutilize Project Lead the Way, which was a
nonprofit curriculum and professional devel opnment provider
to understand the current educational environnment.

8:30:46 PM

PETER CRI MP, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via tel econference), spoke in
support of funding for the Al aska Center for Energy and
Power at UA. He stated that he had worked in an energy-
related field for twenty years, and understood that there
were no absolute solutions for the energy crisis in Al aska.
He stressed the inportance of a strong university to test
technologies that hold promse for Alaska |ike converting
river flow to power; wnd turbine systens suited to
Al aska's cold climate; and fuel additives that may deliver
nore efficient electrical power and reduce air eni ssions.
He wurged support of funding the replacenment of the UAF
heati ng system He stated that by generating both heat and
power, the system could extract the nmaxi mum anount of
energy froma given anount of fuel

8:32: 05 PM

BROOKS CHANDLER, PRESI DENT, FRIENDS OF THE LI BRARY
ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified in support of
funding for the renovation of the Loussac Public Library.
He aligned his testinmony M. Perkins' conmments.

8:33:10 PM

BRUCE PARHAM BOARD NMEMBER, COOK | NLET HI STORI CAL SOCCI ETY,
ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), strongly urged support of
SLAM funding, and urged additional $30 mllion to fully
fund construction of the building. He felt that a total of
$50 mllion was needed in the current year to avoid
possi ble cost increases over the upcomng tw years of
final construction. He felt that the addition of the $30
mllion would save nobney on rising costs of materials and
| abor; added rent and utilities; and recurring operation
and mai ntenance budget for SLAM He stressed that the
pur pose of the project was to preserve and protect Al aska's
hi storical records.

GLENALLEN, SEWARD, HOVER

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 32 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



8:35:32 PM

CHARLENE NOLLNER, SELF, GAKONA VI LLAGE (via
tel econference), urged support of funding the Gakona
Gathering Place. She stated that the funding would be used
to expand the facility. She shared that the foundation and
radi ant floor tubing was conplete, so the funding would be
used towards conplete the building. She stated that the
boil er systemwas built to support the expansion.

8:36:27 PM

BRUCE CAI N, SPECI AL PRQIECTS MANAGER, AHTNA | NC.
GLENNALLEN (via teleconference), testified in support of
funding for the Mentasta Village Council dinic Replacenent
Mat ching funds in the anmount of $300,000. He expl ained that
the clinic was over 20 years old, and had outgrown its
capacity. The funding could also be wused to mtch a
Community Devel opment Block G ant. He voiced support
$250,000 for a <cost estimte of the Tazlina River
pedestrian bridge. He explained that the bridge was
currently a high speed highway bridge, but did not have a
desi gnated pedestrian zone. He also aligned his conments
with Ms. Nollner's testinony.

8:38: 38 PM

JOE BOVEE, LAND AND RESOURCE NMANAGER, AHTNA | NC.,
GLENNALLEN (via teleconference), urged support of funding
the Gokana and State of Alaska land trade. He explained
that the trade would trade Ahtna Inc. land for State of
Al aska. He furthered that the State of Al aska |and was the
former site of the historic native village of Gokana.

8:40: 07 PM

RON LONG, ASSI| STANT aTY MANAGER, SEWARD (via
tel econference), testified in support of funding for the
city's marine industrial center expansion. The project had
been the city's top priority project for the past three
years. He shared the history of the project concept. He
di scussed that the legislature had provided $400,000 to
conduct a feasibility study in the past; the study had
identified 132 different business types that would be
spread across the state. The city was working with the
Departnent of Labor and W rkforce Developnent, regional

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 33 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



econoni ¢ devel opnent organi zations, and other on a project
devel opnment agreenent. The project had $10 mllion in
transportation bond funding that would conplete the
engi neering and permtting work for the project and would
fund the beginning construction phase. He supported a
request for funding that would go towards the conpletion of
a breakwater expansion. The expansion would allow the city
to nmoor vessels and begin generating revenue.

8:43: 57 PM

LOU E BENCARDI NO, SELF, SEWARD (via teleconference),
testified in support of funding for the Al aska Vocationa

Technical Center (AVIEC). He supported funding for a
buil ding that would enable continued heavy equipnent and
welding training. He spoke to a need for workers in the
wel ding boating industries. He stressed that maintenance
needs were becoming critical. He asked for |egislative
support.

8:46: 56 PM

W LLARD  DUNHAM SELF, SEWARD (via teleconference),
testified in support of funding projects for AVIEC He
shared that the marine program was expanding; student
grow h had been phenonenal. He spoke to the inportance of
AVTEC s role in providing Al askan workers to conpete for
jobs in the oil industry and other. He conpl enented Senat or
Bishop on a recent interview about the need to be
conpetitive in the job market. He stressed that the state
engi neer building was in disrepair. He relayed that there
were 16 state-owned buildings on the Seward canpus that
were in need of maintenance. He enphasized the inportance
of the funds.

8:49:57 PM

PATRI CK CHANDLER, | NTERNATI ONAL COASTAL CLEANUP
COORDI NATOR, STATE OF ALASKA, HOVER (via tel econference),
testified in support of funding for the cleanup of debris
resulting from the 2011 Japanese tsunam . He comuni cated
that Al askan beaches collected thousands of pounds of
plastic annually from numerous sources. He stressed that
the issue should be of great concern to those who val ued
Al aska's fisheries and critical habitats. He spoke to the
negative inpacts the debris had on the coastal zones. He
shared that dangerous |evels of chemcals from plastics had

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 34 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



been found in juvenile salnon from Elizabeth Island Lake
He enphasized that debris from the tsunam had conpounded
the problem He urged the conmttee to fund the cleanup
effort.

8:52: 00 PM

RANDALL W EST, PRESIDENT, KACHEMAK SKI CLUB, HOMVER (via
tel econference), testified in support of the purchase of
needed equipnment to inprove safety and accessibility for
skiers and snowboarders. He provided information about the
ski area. The club currently had no designated vehicle or
sled to assist in transport to meet energency services on
the road. He enphasized the inportance of tinely transport
of injured patients. The funds would allow the club to
purchase a snow machine and a towable sled to neet the
saf ety need.

8:54:25 PM

DOUG MALONE, BQOARD MEMBER, KACHEMAK SKI CLUB, HOVER (via
t el econference), encouraged funding for road safety
i nprovenents to the Kachemak  Ski Cl ub. He shared
i nformati on about the history of the rope-tow ski area. He
stressed the inportance of being prepared for accidents. He
detailed that a wde track snow nachine would greatly
increase public safety and would provide a safer venue for
recreationists. The machine would also enable the club to
groom the tow path and ski hill and to transport equi pnent
t hr oughout the site.

8:56:14 PM

KATI E KOESTER, COVWUNI TY AND ECONOM C DEVEL OPMVENT
COORDI NATOR, CITY OF HOVER (via teleconference), spoke in
support of Homer's $4.2 mllion portion of the harbor
facility grant program funds. She shared that the state had
transferred the responsibility of harbors to municipalities
years back; municipalities had inherited major maintenance
and replacenent needs. The legislature had responded with a
harbor facility grant program She provided detail related
to the program The increnent would enable the conmunity to
replace 4,000 feet of float, a ranp, and would provide
power and water to the transient vessel float. She shared
that the city council had increased user rates in order to
raise the required matching funds for the grant. She added

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 35 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



that there was no opposition to the request. She encouraged
the commttee to fund the request.

OFENET

8:58: 53 PM

DONNA STEPHENS, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, HOSPI CE OF ANCHORAGE,
ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified in support of a
$600, 000 Hospi ce of Anchorage request for the Tal ki ng About
It project. She shared that project focused on the
difficult topic of dying. She pointed to countless fanlies
that did not learn about choices they would be faced with
during serious illness. She stressed that making a person's
wi shes known protected their freedom autonony, dignity,
and confort; it also saved noney. The increnent was a one-
time request for a three-year project; the project would
bring together consuners, volunteers, and professionals to
inprove the ability to learn, plan, and talk about care in
the event of life threatening ill ness.

9:01: 28 PM

MARY  MATTHI AS, MAYOR, Nl GHTMUTE (via tel econference),
remar ked that she had testified earlier in the day, but had
additional coments to share. She asked for support of
public health and safety. She spoke in favor of fuel
efficiency and relayed that the community was $80, 000
behind on fuel sales, which made fuel run shorter every
year. She pointed to tax penalties. She shared that
children in the community had imted positive influences,
whi ch neant they were dropping out of school and turning to
drug and al cohol use. She nentioned |andfill problens.

Co- Chair Meyer asked Ms. Matthias to provide her additional
testinmony to her state senator. M. Mtthias asked the
committee to support funds for the community. She thanked
the commttee for hearing her testinony.

9:05:49 PM

HERVAN MORGAN, AN AK, M D YUKON KUSKOKWM SO L AND WATER
CONSERVATI ON DI STRI CT, ANI AK (via t el econf erence),
testified in support of funding for the M d-Yukon/ Kuskokwi m
Soi | and \Water Conservati on District. He provi ded
information on the benefits provided by the entity. He
di scussed different agricultural crops grown. He pointed to

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 36 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



an invasive species eradication program He spoke to
surveys conducted by the conservation district.

9:09:32 PM

LESTER LUNCEFORD, MAYOR, WH TTIER (via teleconference),
testified in support of funding for Wittier's public works
building and roof repair. He detailed that the building
held the city's public safety and works equi pnent and was
t he energency center for Prince WIIliam Sound. He asked for
continued funding for road construction.

9:10: 47 PM

LAYTON LOCKETT, CITY MANAGER, ADAK (via teleconference),
urged support of supplenental revenue sharing. He shared
that power constituted one-third of Adak's total nunicipa
budget. He stressed that there was a limt to the cuts the
city could make to public safety and welfare. He noted that
the city was conducting a hydropower study. He spoke in
support of capital funds for the study. He pointed to other
funding sources. He asked for support of a $15 nillion
request for the harbor; construction was underway and had
been paused. He relayed that the city was heavily reliant
on state and ot her funds.

9:13: 06 PM

M KE GRACE, SELF, NENANA (via teleconference), testified
against the Nenana bridge and road project funding. He
stated that the city had requested approximately $6.5
mllion for the project that was estimted to cost an
additional $10.5 mllion in the future. He believed the
project was a premature expenditure and possibly a waste of
t axpayers' noney. He furthered that there had been no
proven gas or oil resource in the area to date, which was
the nost recent justification for the bridge project. He
did not believe the state would recover the expense of the
project. He opined that if the project continued it should
be managed by the state and not the City of Nenana; the
city had trouble plowing its own roads during the w nter.
He expounded that tinber had been cited as a reason for the
project; however, a forest fire had w ped out nuch of the
| ocal tinber acreage.

9:16:12 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 37 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



M CHELLE NESBETT, BOARD OF DI RECTORS, ANCHORACGE
NEI GHBORHOOD HEALTH CENTER, ANCHORAGE (vi a tel econference),
spoke in support of the $90,000 Anchorage Neighborhood
Health Center request that would finance a shuttle to
transport patients from the dowtown transit center to the
facility. She outlined that the center provided primary
care to nore than 13,000 patients; it was growi ng by 500
new patients per nonth. She detailed that 72 percent of the
patients were at or below the poverty line and were sone of
the community's nost vulnerable citizens. The shuttle would
enable citizens to maintain better health and woul d provide
access to preventative care, which would reduce energency
roomvisits.

9:17:41 PM

JACQUE LONGPRE, MAYOR, AN AK (via teleconference), urged
support for supplenental revenue sharing. He shared that
Aniak had a new sewer system that had been plagued by
problens and represented a significant portion of the
comunity's budget. He stated that the sewer system did not
pay for itself and took funds away from road and dunp
mai nt enance and other <city functions. He stressed that
reduci ng funds to past revenue sharing anmounts woul d be the
nail in the coffin to the community. He stated that the
comunity was in a slow dowward spiral as costs increased
each year.

Co- Chair Meyer handed the gavel to Co-Chair Kelly.

9:19: 32 PM

CHUCK KAUCI C, SELF, PALMER (via teleconference), spoke in
support of base operations for Soil and Water Conservation
Districts throughout the state. He detailed that the
conservation districts were foundational organizations in
communities; for exanple, the Wasilla organization had been
founded in 1948 to serve neighbors and residents. He
di scussed services provided by the entities including soil

sanpling services, private water-well testing services,
sal non stream bank restoration habi t at enhancenent
projects, invasive weeds, stream water quality testing,

public outreach to school students, and other. He shared
that the entities taught residents how to grow their own
f ood.

9:22:23 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 38 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



CHARLENE  ARNESON, CHAI R, VWH TTIER WATERSHED COUNCI L,
WH TTIER (via teleconference), testified in support of a
one-tinme matching increnent of $500,000 for the repair of
the Whittier Creek |levy. She shared information about the
creek; a leak in the levy was worsening each year. She
pointed to nunerous buildings |ocated in the creek's flood
path. She discussed tourism in the town and disruptions
that would occur if the creek overflowed. She relayed that
the U S. Arny Corps of Engineers agreed that the council's
concerns were valid; subsequently the corps had proposed a
levy repair plan. The current danage equal ed approxi mately
$1.2 mllion.

9:27:38 PM

VENUS WOODS, ALASKA NATIVE JUSTI CE CENTER, ANCHORAGE (via
tel econference), spoke in support of funding for Progress
for Progress, Alaska Native Justice Center, and N ne Star
She shared a personal story about how the justice center
had saved her |ife. She conmunicated that she had graduated
from the reentry program after being released from a
correctional facility; after graduation she had becone a
peer nentor. The program had helped her reunite with her
children. She currently worked for the organization, which
taught ex-offenders how to turn their |lives around. The
prograns collaborated to provide guidance for successful
return to into the community. She stated that the justice
center received nore than 300 applications annually. She
urged the committee to support the prograns.

9:30: 20 PM

JULI E  SANDY, BOARD CHAIR, KETCH KAN MEDI CAL CENTER
KETCH KAN (via teleconference), testified in support of
full funding for the Ketchikan Medical Center. She stated
that the project had a direct inpact on the economc
devel opnent of the region and was vital in the ability to
provide quality healthcare. She believed that strong
industry and famlies were the backbone of the state;
wi t hout good healthcare it was not possible to have either.

9:31:22 PM

STANLEY HAWLEY, SELF, NATIVE VILLAGE OF KIVALINA (via
tel econference), urged support for a $2.5 mllion request
to fund feasibility studies for the Kivalina evacuation

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 39 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



road. He expounded that the road' s prinmary purpose was to
provide a safety route to higher ground for conmunity
residents in the event of wnd-driven storm surges. He
furthered that storm surges had becone nore frequent as a
result of climte change. He asked for support of a new
school at the evacuation termnal. The road would require
between $3 million and $6 nmillion in planning funds; the
$2.5 mllion increnent would contribute significantly to
the ultimte goal. He relayed that the road had high
regi onal support.

9:33:32 PM

DWAYNE HOPSON, SR, MAYOR, NU QUT (via teleconference),
testified in support of funding for a community center roof
renovation to address water damage. He stated that the
facility housed city hall and provided space for comunity
neetings. The community had nore than 70 neetings per year
that were hosted by industry and governnent agencies. He
stressed that the ceiling was collapsing and the el ectrical
system was drenched. The project was estimated to cost
$500, 000 or nore.

9:35:49 PM

ANG E GORN, PRESI DENT, NORTON SOUND HEALTH GROUP, NOMVE (via
t el econference), spoke in favor a $400,000 request for the
Norton Sound Health G oup. She detailed that the group had
opened a new hospital and long-term care facility. She
furthered that the nursing home scored as one of the best
39 nursing hones in the nation. She discussed the need for
an assisted living facility for elders in the region. She
pointed to a long waiting list of elders in need of care.
She shared that the state would benefit from receiving 100
percent of the Medicaid dollars through the Indian Health
Service. She thanked Senator O son for his strong support
and invited commttee nmenbers to visit the facilities in
Norme.

9:38:17 PM

JOYCE BROWN- Rl VERS, MAYOR, MOUNTAI N VI LLAGE (via
tel econference), testified in support of the supplenental
revenue sharing funds. She enphasized that the funds were
needed in the city. She communicated that a cut in funds
meant that the city was overspending on city operations.
She pointed to the needs of a local water/sewer system

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 40 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



half of the town had not had running water since
Christmastinme. She stressed that funds would help wth
health and other itens in the region.

9:40: 53 PM

Co- Chair Meyer CLOSED public testinony.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough disclosed that she worked for Hospice
during the interim

Co- Chair Meyer observed that there was a high interest in
fundi ng engi neering prograns at the university; he hoped to
be able to fund multiple requests, but noted that $109
mllion was a substantial cost.

Senator Bishop pointed to the significant testinony on the
i nportance of revenue sharing.

SB 18 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ OURNVENT

9:42:32 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 9:42 p. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 41 04/01/13 6:14 P. M



